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’The Liverpool Boys’ by Adrian Struve
Although  there  were  plenty  of  well-to-do businessmen  in Liverpool with  philanthropic  ideals  and  a  few  dedicated  individuals such  as  Major  Lester  and  Father  Nugent  who  were  devoting  their  lives  to the  alleviation  of  suffering  in  the  city,  their  efforts  were  not  enough to  arrest  the  downward  course  of  poverty,   disease  and  unemployment.

It  was  during  this  late  Victorian  period  that  a  number  of  prosperous boys'  boarding-schools  were  founding  "missions"  in  the  poor  areas  of big  cities,   the  object  being  to  dispense  Christian  charity  in  the  form of  food  and  clothing  and  to  support  financially  a  man  or  a  team  of people  who  would  help  to  keep  boys  off  the  streets  and  out  of  mischief.  As  far  as  the  boarding-schools  were  concerned  this  was  charitable  action carried  out at long  range;  boarding-school  rules  in  those  days  allowed for  very  little  time  away  from  the school  precincts.                      

One  of  the  oldest  and  best-known  of  these  schools,  Shrewsbury,  had endeavoured  since  1896  to  maintain  such  a  mission  in  Bethnal  Green, in London's  East  End.    But  Shrewsbury  lies  160  miles  away,  near  the  border  of Wales, and  communication  between  the  school  and  its  mission  became  so slender  that  seven  years  later  it  was   decided  to  make  a  fresh  start elsewhere.   So  the  headmaster  of  The Head Master Shrewsbury  School,   the  Reverend  H. Moss,  invited  an  old  pupil  of  his,  Digby  Kittermaster,  who  was  just finishing  his  curacy  in  a  parish  in  Gateshead,  to come  to  Liverpool, which  was  only  60  miles  from Shrewsbury,   and  found  a  mission  in  the school's  name  there.

The  Shrewsbury  Boys'   Club  opened  on  November  10th 1903, in  a disused  public  house in Mansfield  Street,  which  was  the  poorest  area that  Kittermaster  could  find  in  the  city,   barely  ten  minutes'  walk north  of  Lime  Street  Station.  It was just  inside  the   south  end   of  Everton - once  a  village, but by  then  completely  engulfed  by  the   sprawling  city. 
The Club was full from the word go. Kittermaster  and  his  tiny  band  of helpers  were  hard  put  to  it  to  hold  their  own.    There were many bad nights, interspersed with a few  good  ones.  It  was  not  unknown  for  all the  members  to  be  turned  out  and  the  doors  to  be  locked  against  them.  Broken windows were a regular event.  But by the summer  of  1904  Kittermaster  was  winning  and  when  he  returned  from  the  summer  camp  at Bolton-le-Sands  he  knew  he  could  count  on  a  core  of  loyal  members  for the  autumn,  as well  as  helpers  who  could  stand  up to  almost  anything.

Godliness and social action went together in his programme.    It  was  as a  Christian  that  he  strove  to  meet  the  more  pressing  needs  of  his desperately  poor  members,   and  if  his  time  was  largely  absorbed  with providing  them  with  clothes,   shoes  and  a  weekly  bath  (as  well  as  classes in  boxing,   joinery,   cobbling,   geography,   science,   elocution,   singing- whatever  he  could  find  instructors  for)  he  never  let  his  determination. 

